
September 12, 2002 – Zoning Board of Appeal Minutes 1

 
Minutes of the Zoning Board of Appeals Meeting held by the Zoning Board of Appeals 
of the Town of LaFayette on September 12, 2002 in the Meeting Room of the LaFayette 
Commons Office building on Route 11 in the Town of LaFayette. 
 Present: Stephen Beggs, Chairman 
   Albert Miller, Board Member 
   Robert Drumm, Board Member 
   James Butkus, Board Member 
   Daniel Kuhns, Board Member 
 Recording Secretary:  Mary Jo Kelly 
 Others Present: See attached attendance sheet 
 
 Chairman Beggs called the meeting to order at 7:37 p.m.  He apologized for 
having to reschedule the meeting until tonight due to the Primary on Tuesday.  This was 
the first available time. 
 Chairman Beggs asked if everyone had a chance to review the Minutes and if 
there were any corrections or additions.  Member Butkus had a correction to the August 
13, 2002, Zoning Board Meeting Minutes:  On page 4 it was “Board Member Butkus” 
who asked why she asked the Board not to make them move in place of “Board Member 
Kuhns”.  Board Member Kuhns had a correction on the same page, the 9th line down 
should be “to” in place of “o”.   There were no other corrections or additions.  Member’s 
Miller moved and Drumm seconded the motion to approve the August 13, 2002, Zoning 
Board of Appeals Minutes as corrected.  Motion passed unanimously. 
  
 CASE # 542 – The continuation of the public hearing on the appeal of Claire 
Watson for an expansion of a non-conforming use at 2980 Sentinel Heights Rd. in an 
Agricultural/Residential District. 
 
 Chairman Beggs handed out copies of letters to the rest of the Board Members, 
the attorney and secretary that were sent to him personally.   He said tonight they were 
handed  a letter from Jason Timian dated September 8,  2002, in support of the Watson 
application. They were handed a letter from Bond Schoeneck & King dated September 
10, 2002, which responded to many issues brought up last month by Mr. Freund, Mr. 
Tennant and Mr. Murray.  This is a 5 page document that has been filed with the 
Secretary and a copy given to the town attorney.  A letter from Sonneborn, Spring, 
O’Sullivan and Zenzel dated August 13, 2002 was submitted.  This letter was submitted 
on behalf of Kurt Watson stating he takes no position to the Claire Watson application.  
He has no interest in slandering the case.  He is still a 40% shareholder in the Watson 
Landscaping Business. He received a letter from Mr. Freund and his wife Joan dated 
August 19, 2002 which he has also distributed.  In the letter they express concern that a 
lot of people have had input that do not live in the Town of LaFayette.  This letter is on 
record in the Town Offices for anyone who wishes to review.  The other letter he 
received from Bond Schoeneck & King dated August 23, 2002 from Dean Heberlig was a 
request to the Zoning Board of Appeals on how to handle the instructional classes that 
will be set up for this fall.  Chairman Beggs in turn contacted the town attorney regarding 
this matter.  As Chairman of the Zoning Board of Appeals, he cannot comment as this is 



September 12, 2002 – Zoning Board of Appeal Minutes 2

a  function of the Zoning Officer.  The attorney has contacted Mr. Lamson and that is 
where this lies.  At the last meeting, he requested Mr. Lamson to put together a summary 
of the dialogue that has taken place between the Zoning Officer and the applicant.  
There’s been a lot of statements and innuendos made regarding this factor and he thinks 
it’s appropriate for public record to hear from Mr. Lamson. 
 Ralph Lamson submitted a copy of the Building Permit issued September 19, 
2001. Ralph said Bob Watson came in and told him he was replacing an office that got 
knocked down by the wind.  They discussed how the building would be built at that time.  
It would be 14’x 52’.  Bob told him who the builder would be and Ralph was familiar 
with him and issued the Building  Permit.  Some time after that (within 2 weeks to 1 
month) Bob Watson called Ralph and asked if it would be alright to modify the back of 
the building by a couple of feet so they could attach it to the greenhouse.  Ralph thought a 
couple of feet would be no problem and said O.K.  He did a foundation inspection around 
Christmas.  A few weeks after that, he went up to Watson’s to do a framing inspection 
and that is when he found out the building was quite a lot bigger than what it was suppose 
to be.  He sent letters of non-conformity (copies were submitted for the record) and 
informed the Watson’s they must come before the Zoning Board of Appeals to seek 
approval before continuing with anything.  He submitted a letter to Robert Watson dated 
January 8, 2002, a Notice of Nonconformity dated January 11, 2002,  a note to Bob 
advising him he required a specific permit and variance, a letter to Robert Watson dated 
February 8, 2002, a letter to Claire Watson dated February 19, 2002,  a letter to Claire 
Watson dated February 25, 2002, an application for a Building Permit dated September 9, 
1980, and a Notice of Nonconformity sent to Kurt Watson February 17, 1994. 
 Chairman Beggs said reviewing the letter from Bond, Schoeneck & King dated 
June 6, 2002, there’s some statements made he would like clarification on a couple of 
matters. Regarding greenhouse # 1….In July, 1981, the commercial greenhouse for 26 x 
96 was approved.  “…the Watsons  replaced the 9 6’ x 26’ greenhouse with a 102’ x 
35.1’ greenhouse in 2001”.  That’s equates to a 43.5 % increase in area.  Was there a 
building permit issued for that greenhouse? 
 Ralph said no.   
 Chairman Beggs said greenhouse #2 was approved at 120’ x 17’ on June 14, 
1995, and in 1996 or 1997 the new greenhouse was constructed that was 100.2’ x 27.5’ 
reflecting  33% increase in size.  Was a building permit issued for that? 
 Ralph said no. 
 Chairman Beggs said greenhouse # 3 was approved for 96’ x 27’ and basically 
that was built as 95’ x 27.7’.  The footage of that is insignificant.  The retail store was 
originally 14’x 52’ with 728 square feet and the current one built is 1607 square feet.  
Were you aware that the size of the new structure was more than twice the old one at the 
time of approval? 
 Ralph said no he wasn’t.  
 Chairman Beggs asked if any of the other members had any questions. 
 Member Kuhns asked with greenhouses, is there a permit required to expand them 
and make them larger? 
 Ralph said yes. 
 Member Kuhns said it was also stated during previous meetings that Mr. Watson 
had come to Ralph after he issued the permit. 



September 12, 2002 – Zoning Board of Appeal Minutes 3

 Ralph said it was a phone call.   
 John Langey said in the 1994 resolution, it said there would be plants along 
Sentinel Heights Road.  Was there an inspection done after this to see if they were 
planted? 
 Ralph said there is no record that the resolution was followed up on. 
 John asked if there was ever a formal complaint about this. 
 Ralph said not in his office. 
 John asked the Board if they had any recollection of this. 
 Member Butkus said the 4’ high plantings were requested to go along the road to 
the north of their house.  That was in the 1994 resolution.  In September of 1994, he went 
there and talked to Bob Watson and they walked around the area and he asked about the 
plantings.  Bob basically said the little rise kind of hid  the greenhouse and the plantings 
weren’t necessary.  He thought there would be a Code Enforcement action on this.  At the 
same meeting, the hours/time of operation was given to the Board by the applicant.  The 
rest of the stuff has gone back and forth.  He spent about 4 hours last night trying to 
figure out what is going on here.  He never saw classes anywhere in their applications 
until recently.  As far as items that weren’t grown at that location, he remembers talk of 
clay pots, peat moss, potting soil, etc.  Basically, things that would be sold directly with a 
plant or used to grow the plants.  It was more or less a horizontal expansion of the 
business, not a vertical expansion.   He remembers driving down Sentinel Heights Rd. 30 
years ago.  He use to drive down that road quite a bit and traffic today is a lot more than 
what it was back then.  How much more?  He can’t say but it’s definitely more. 
 Chairman Beggs said it was documented in the first resolution in 1981 and again 
in 1994 defining the planting requirements.  At one time it was pointed out that they were 
to be 4’ high and 4’ apart.  He has an ariel photo taken of the Watson property in 1996 
that illustrates the fact that at that point in time, all the shrubs were not in place.   There 
were 6 shrubs in the photo. 
 Claire said Ralph examined the shrubs. 
 Ralph said they are there now.  They aren’t on the top of the rise. 
 Member Butkus said it didn’t specifically state they had to be on the rise. 
 Greg Watson said they could be deciduous, they didn’t have to be evergreens. 
 Chairman Beggs said there are suppose to be a row of them 4’ tall and 4’ apart as 
stated in 1981. 
 Greg said there are between 8 and 10 of them planted.  They are at least 5’ tall 
now.  If they didn’t think they were there, they should have sent an Enforcement Officer. 
 Chairman Beggs asked for any further questions. 
 Member Kuhns addressed the Watson’s and their attorney.  He said he is fairly 
new to this position so he doesn’t have a history but what he sees in the documentation is 
what has been asked for by this Board in the past, hasn’t been complied with.  He would 
like to know how they can convince this Board that they will comply with what is 
decided now. 
 Carol said Kurt Watson is no longer president of the corporation.  She would sign 
any statement they would like her to that they will comply.  Some of the things in the past 
were taken care of in the 1994 meeting  The greenhouses were accepted in 1994.  They 
were told deciduous shrubs were O.K.  These things do happen when the management is 
not honest. Greg Watson is president of the corporation now and he and she are honest.  



September 12, 2002 – Zoning Board of Appeal Minutes 4

A lot of people drive Sentinel Heights Road now that didn’t drive it before as they don’t 
want to drive through the Reservation. 
 Claire said she did ask a town official if they needed a permit to build a 
greenhouse and she was told not unless it was significantly larger.  She certainly never 
would do something without going according to the rules.  She didn’t know she needed a 
permit.  She will not say which town official she spoke with. 
 John asked which building she was talking about when she asked about the 
permit. 
 Claire said both of them. 
 Member Drumm asked why she asked about both of them and didn’t build them 
at the same time? 
 Claire said she actually only asked about the first one. 
 Carol said there was also confusion as the State of New York says you don’t need 
a permit. 
 Member Kuhns asked if they took the time and investigated that far, wouldn’t it 
have been easier to ask a town official? 
 Claire said she did. 
 Member Drumm asked what the town official’s capacity was that she spoke to. 
 Claire said she won’t put that person on the spot. 
 Their attorney said it’s under new management now and  they want to comply 
with what’s required.   
 Greg said he deals on a daily basis with things that have been done on the wrong 
side from former management.  It goes from practices in the greenhouses to bookkeeping, 
etc.   
 Member Butkus asked how long Kurt was president. 
 Greg said 1981 or 1982 to September of 2001. 
 Member Butkus asked if the rest of them were Board Members. 
 Greg said he and Claire were.  They did most of the operation stuff and left most 
of the administration stuff to Kurt.  It’s funny that you can’t trust your own brother but 
that’s the way it is.  It’s funny you can’t trust your own son, but that’s the way reality is. 
 Claire said they trusted him. 
 John asked who owns the land now at 2980 Sentinel Heights Rd.? 
 Claire said she does. 
 John asked if it’s leased. 
 Claire said not at this point but they hope to get that straightened out too. 
 John spoke with the D.O.T. about the top of the driveway and was advised they 
wee going to move a lot of the material out of the way for parking.  He asked if this has 
been completed. 
 Claire said they have to do a little more fill before December when the tractor 
trailers come. 
 John asked what the tractor trailers will be delivering. 
 Claire said soil. 
 Greg said peat moss and potting soil. 
 John asked if there were 2 or 3 tractor trailers per year. 
 Member Kuhns remembered them stating 5 or 6. 
 Greg said the trees are delivered in the spring. 



September 12, 2002 – Zoning Board of Appeal Minutes 5

 John asked if the trees are replanted in the ground or are they balled? 
 Greg said they are balled. 
 Claire said most of them are put in pots. 
 Kathy Bennett submitted a letter from the D.O.T. dated August 19, 2002. 
 John said in a submission from Dean Heberlig dated September 10, 2002, there 
was a letter from the D.E.C. and a pesticide record from Watson’s Landscaping which 
must be filed with the D.E.C.  There’s a letter from Donald Nelson of the D.E.C. who’s a 
Pesticide Control Specialist in NYS DEC Region 7 confirming that the establishment is 
in compliance with the pesticides they are using.   This was discussed at an earlier 
meeting in regards to the pesticides they are using.  He asked if they are selling pesticides 
to the customers. 
 Claire said yes they are. 
 Member Kuhns asked in relation to the pesticides application, what other products 
are used on the plants?  He asked if they use herbicides. 
 Carol said they use fertilizer. 
 Member Kuhns asked if they had any idea how long it takes these products to 
break down. 
 Claire said a specialist told her most of them dry up inside the greenhouses and 
anything that leaks out will only go an inch deep and the bacteria in the soil goes to work 
and breaks the rest down.  They use an electrostatic sprayer and it’s charged so it goes to 
the leaves of the plants. 
 Member Kuhns asked who she checked with on this. 
 Claire said a man from Griffin Greenhouse Supply and he contacted someone 
who has a doctors degree that works with the fertilizer runoff that would go into the 
Chesapeake Bay. 
 Chairman Beggs asked if any other Members of the Board had any questions. 
 Member Drumm asked if they were aware of the fact that when the greenhouses 
were put up they were not exactly of the size they were suppose to be.   
 Greg said personally he did not know.  He didn’t know what was approved. 
 Carol said she wasn’t around for the first one and when the second one was put 
up, she was not aware of it. 
 Claire said she knew because she asked the official if they needed a permit as it 
was a different size. 
 Carol said Claire knew the size of the greenhouse but didn’t know they weren’t 
legal. 
 Chairman Beggs said there was an increase of 43.4% in size in 1981 and the other 
one was a 35% increase from the 1994 documentation.  The third one was in compliance 
as permitted. 
 Member Kuhns asked about the parking.  Is it being enlarged to allow the tractor 
trailers to turn around? 
 Carol said yes and they are going to pave the driveway for the first 50 feet next 
week. 
 Member Kuhns asked when they take delivery of the products. 
 Greg said in the morning. 
 Member Kuhns asked if customers are there. 
 Greg said it’s usually earlier than they arrive. 



September 12, 2002 – Zoning Board of Appeal Minutes 6

 Member Kuhns asked how many parking spaces there are. 
 Greg said 15-20. 
 Carol said in that one section. 
 Member Kuhns thinks with the code, it calls for one space per 100’.  He 
remembers getting a document that said there were 26 spaces available.  He doesn’t buy 
that. 
 Greg said there could have been if they hadn’t located the shrubs in the front.  
They can be moved. 
 Claire said there are about 10 spots behind the greenhouse. 
 Member Kuhns said it would be difficult to get 10 cars back there and be able to 
get one car turned around and out. 
 Claire said they did this during the Hospice event. 
 Member Kuhns asked what the codes read for parking spaces for this site. 
 Ralph will check into this. 
 Chairman Beggs asked if the applicant had anything further to say. 
 Carol said she has lived on Sentinel Heights Rd. since 1953.  Traffic in LaFayette 
has changed a lot because lifestyles have changed a lot.  The kids are driving more.  The 
school wasn’t there 30 years ago.   A lot of kids come around this way from school.  
There are two TV towers being built this summer and there were are a lot of tractor 
trailers for that and Mr. Irwin’s business gets a lot of tractor trailers.  There are milk 
tractor trailers every day going to Storriers.  Does their business have more traffic than 30 
years ago?  Yes, but not more than 2 years ago.   
 Member Butkus asked if she thought moving the business to Sentinel Heights Rd. 
from Route 11 didn’t increase the traffic on Sentinel Heights. 

Carol said no because they used to have to bring the things they grew down to the 
Route 11 site.   

Claire said a lot of people visited both places. 
Kathy said this was noted on page 2 of their September 10th letter.  
Carol has been with the company for awhile now but she can’t say they haven’t 

made any modifications because they have.  She is very confident that they have learned 
from their mistakes and it won’t happen again.  Being a resident and a concerned 
businessman in LaFayette, she doesn’t want to do things anti-LaFayette.  She submitted 
an article the supervisor wrote in the last LaFayette Newsletter which included the study 
done by S.U. that indicated 92% of the residents surveyed wanted more business in 
LaFayette and 11%  didn’t like the zoning laws.  It seems to her they are a good business 
for the Town of LaFayette.  They make their living this way.  The issues in front of the 
Board are about how are they different than they were a year ago?  Their building is 
bigger and she still feels her dad did things the right way.  Even if their building wasn’t 
built, customers would still come.  They don’t come because of the size of the building, 
they come because of the business.  She doesn’t think we are such a town that only what 
people say counts.  Beak and Skiff brings in customers and they are different now than 
they were 20 years ago.  They aren’t any bigger now than they were in 1996.  They are 
bigger indoors now and they were bigger outdoors then.  They just want to do what they 
do and do it well.  They aren’t asking to be bigger.  They have made some changes.  She 
still feels confident that they are a reputable and honest business. 

Member Butkus said he doesn’t question that but there are zoning laws in the 



September 12, 2002 – Zoning Board of Appeal Minutes 7

town.  The reason he built his house here was because he was sure he would have some 
protection about something occurring next to him that he didn’t think was right.  This 
Board is looking at what the law says and not whether the business is good or bad.  
County Planning did a Comprehensive Plan for the town in 1988 and they said most of 
the commercial business should be along Route 11 and Route 81 and the rest of it should 
be more of a country style.  A business that could have been very successful was 
thwarted by some of the people who said they wanted business in LaFayette.  There was 
a good business that was not permitted to build here that would not have impacted the 
town at all. 

Kathy said they are not asking for new zoning.  They are asking for a Specific 
Permit to bring this business into compliance. 

Ralph said in answer to Member Kuhns question regarding parking, you would 
have to clarify the building as a store which is 1 space for every 100 square feet or as an 
other commercial enterprise which is 1 space for every 300’.  This would be the Board’s 
decision. 

Chairman Beggs asked where this information is. 
Ralph said on pages 22-23 of the Zoning Ordinance. 
Member Kuhns believes this has been referred to as a store in these meetings. 
Chairman Beggs encouraged the Board Members to study the Ordinance and then 

they will determine  this.  He doesn’t expect anyone to be able to digest and spit this out 
tonight.  He asked the applicant if they had anything further to say. 

They didn’t. 
Chairman Beggs asked if anyone in support of the application had anything to 

say. 
No one came forward. 
Chairman Beggs asked for anyone in opposition to the application if they had 

anything to say. 
Robert DeOrdio said Howard Evans was the Code Enforcement Officer at the 

time the earlier resolutions were done.  He called Howard with his complaint about the 
shrubs every day, then every week.  If you put a 12’ x 12’ pad in, you expect a 12’ x 12’ 
building.  If you put a 15’ x 15’ pad in, you expect a 15’ x 15’ building.  You can’t blame 
everything on Kurt.  Kurt is gone.  There was never a building that was blown down by 
the wind. 

Jeff Murray said God Bless Zoning Laws.  A friend of his bought a quarter of a 
million dollar house and his neighbor put a double-wide in next door to him.  The value 
of his house dropped significantly.  He would like a copy of the chemicals list Watson’s 
submitted.  The wetlands are all behind the business.  Whether it’s 1” or 1’ that the 
chemicals drain into the soil, it will run down hill into the wetlands.  He said there was 
the impression given that the landscaping and the greenhouses are 2 separate business 
and the landscaping will remain at Route 11.  What’s to stop them from parking their 
vehicles on Sentinel Heights if it’s still one business? 

Chairman Beggs said at the last meeting, he clarified this is the greenhouse 
business only and nothing applies to the landscaping business.  This Board will treat them 
as a separate business. 

Jeff said if the greenhouse business gets to expand the driveway to allow more 
vehicles and if the landscaping business decides to move their vehicles to the Sentinel 



September 12, 2002 – Zoning Board of Appeal Minutes 8

Heights site, will it be allowed?  Who’s to stop this from happening?  He submitted a 
report from Dunn and Bradstreet that shows owners of businesses.  It published when 
Greg became the chief officer, etc.  He would like this included in the minutes tonight.  
How are they to know things will be better?  When these meetings started, the Board was 
told there were no tractor trailers and now the Board is told the applicant will make the 
parking better so the tractor trailers can turn around.  He thinks this is an example of how 
things will change. 

Claire said they were saying 18-wheel trucks.  It was her fault as she said they 
didn’t have any 18-wheelers as she didn’t take the time to count the wheels on the trucks.  
Dean Heberlig rectified that issue. 

Bob Tennant asked about the traffic.  He said it was stated tonight that they won’t 
be trucking stuff to the Route 11 site so there won’t be so much traffic.  If people can’t 
buy the stuff at the Route 11 site, won’t they be going to the Sentinel Heights site? 

Carol said they came both places.  They stopped at the Route 11 site and then 
came to Sentinel Heights.   

Bob asked when someone submits a building application to replace a building, is 
it assumed they will be replacing it with the same materials and the same size? 

Ralph said nothing is assumed.  He asks them. 
Bob said if he had a greenhouse with a dirt floor and a plastic top and it blew 

down and he applied to replace it, would Ralph allow him to put in a concrete foundation 
or would he have to replace the building exactly as it was? 

Ralph said he could change it. 
Bob asked if the permit wouldn’t have to say how it would be changed. 
Ralph said that is why they asked.  The permit would reflect it. 
Bob said when he drives by, he sees the newest building made of metal.  Can this 

be construed as a replacement of what was there? 
Ralph said yes.  You can build it out of any material you choose to. 
John asked Bob Tennant what he saw where the new building was built before it 

was erected. 
Bob said you couldn’t see the old building because it was so much smaller and 

behind the house. 
Member Drumm said it’s bigger than the original one. 
Bob said it’s bigger and higher.  The building there before was temporary and he 

doesn’t think it was taxable.  Their taxes were raised 29,000 this year because of the new 
building. 

John asked why he says the old building was temporary. 
Bob said he assumed this. 
John said it was never part of a written record. 
Bob said on the 1994 plot plan it did not show a building 18’ x 52’.  It showed a 

building 14 ½ ‘ x 20’. 
Chairman Beggs said this is part of the records. 
Bob said this is one of the documents he got when he first came to the town.  He 

asked if it isn’t good business practice when you call and ask for permission for 
something, to have something in writing granting the permission. 

Chairman Beggs would agree there should be written documentation to support 
decisions made. 



September 12, 2002 – Zoning Board of Appeal Minutes 9

Bob said in the 1981 resolution, it says “shrubbery to be planted along the entire 
96 foot length of the west side of the greenhouse fronting on Sentinel Heights Road, and 
that the shrubbery be of sufficient size and density so as to substantially shield the 
greenhouse from view..”.  In 1984 when Watson’s built 2 greenhouses without 
permission, is says “Petitioners Kurt Watson and Greg Watson advised the Planning 
Board at the public hearing that Petitioners had not planted any shrubbery to screen the 
first commercial greenhouse erected on the property, even though the planting of 
shrubbery was expressly required by the Zoning Board as a condition to the specific 
permit for the first greenhouse that was granted by the Zoning Board on July 1, 1981…”  
So in 1984 they still hadn’t planted the shrubbery.  In 1994, it’s brought up again and 
they still hadn’t planted it.   

Dot Tennant said they were saying that no one complained.  They look out their 
window and that is all they see.  They have seen this since 1981.  The didn’t complain 
because they felt they were being good neighbors.  They didn’t want to make waves.  
Now they find themselves in the position that they are the bad guys because there’s a 
business in their neighborhood that is growing and expanding and they don’t feel it’s 
appropriate for the neighborhood.  There’s a lot of commercial property on Route 11.  
She doesn’t understand why they can’t bring their business in a place where it can build 
and grow. 

Mr. DeOrdio said they just moved their business to Sentinel Heights and said they 
were open for business.  The town let them do it. 

Bob said when they discussed the neighborhood, they omitted the Moltion's, 
Freund's, DeOrdio’s, Tennant's, etc.  These people are the neighborhood, not the people 
from Cazenovia, Winacre Drive, etc.  Those people are not in the immediate 
neighborhood. 

Dot said people don’t complain unless it directly affects them.  They were upset 
when Bob Irwin ran his business and it kept the Winacre residents awake so they got it 
shut down.  Those residents don’t care what happens on Sentinel Heights Road because it 
doesn’t affect them.  If she didn’t live there, she wouldn’t care either.  To have people 
who are living in a place of their choosing and it’s quiet it bothers them not to be able to 
do anything but be told you have to accept this because you just have to.  They are in a 
situation where they are having 48 more apartments built right behind them along their 
western boundary.  They are going to have septic systems for those apartments right up to 
their boundary.  On their northern border they have Bob Irwin’s chipping business. 

John said there was a public hearing on the apartments. 
Bob said they have nothing to say about that. 
John said the Planning Board has not voted on this yet.  The town engineer and 

the County Department of Health are reviewing the matter to be sure it will not have an 
impact on neighboring properties. 

Dot said they are being squeezed like crazy. 
Bob said they now have  greenhouses across the road, 80 apartments behind them 

and Bob Irwin’s business next to them.  They feel they have been abandoned by zoning. 
Dot said it’s probably their fault because they didn’t complain because they 

wanted to be good neighbors.  When Bob Watson wanted to put up the first greenhouse, 
they said go ahead. 

Bob said it’s even in the 1981 resolution that they plan no more expansion.  That 



September 12, 2002 – Zoning Board of Appeal Minutes 10

certainly hasn’t  proven to be true. 
Chairman Beggs asked if anyone had anything new to offer. 
Nothing further was brought forward so Chairman Beggs closed the public 

hearing.  He asked counsel to refer this to County Planning along with all the 
documentation in support and opposition for the application because they requested to 
have this resubmitted for rereview. 

John will send them the whole thing. 
Bob asked how soon it will be going to the county.  He has a letter to Karen 

Kitney stating that if this is referred back to the county, he is requesting equal time from 
her to meet with the residents like she gave the Watson’s.  He would like to know when 
this is going to be submitted so he can make an appointment with her before this is 
submitted for their review. 

John would hope it would be sent the early part of next week. 
Bob asked if the county has open meetings. 
John said County Planning Board Meetings are open meeting to the public. 
John Harper said he thought he heard someone say greenhouses are permanent 

structure.  They are not permanent.  There’s no foundation under a greenhouse. 
 
Case # 544 – Daniel J Galvin – Sketch Plan Conference – Appeal for a 

specific permit to operate a mixed use (tailoring service, antiques/collectibles, 
clothing, plants, gifts) operation at his residence at 2455 Route 11 south 
approximately 1,130 feet south of the Route 20 and 11 intersection in a Hamlet 
District. 

 
Chairman Beggs said the Board will require detailed plans for parking facilities 

on the parcel. 
Daniel said this is just a sketch.  They have put in some run-a-crush and he wants 

to put a few more spots in. 
John said there’s a pending subdivision application which will probably be 

decided on at the next Planning Board Meeting. 
Chairman Beggs said the total property will be ½ acre. 
John said yes if it gets approved which he sees no reason it won’t.  The Planning 

Board is not reviewing the business aspect of this. 
Daniel said he doesn’t plan on doing anything until after the first of the year. 
Member Miller said the Board will want to see dimensions. 
Chairman Beggs asked how far the structure is from the south property line. 
Ralph said about 27’. 
Discussion took place re: home occupation and whether this falls into that 

definition or if it would require controlled site. 
Ralph said the only thing he saw that might not make it a home occupation is if 

things would be displayed in the windows.  If it was just a tailoring shop, there would be 
no mention of this. 

John thinks this might have to go in front of the Planning Board. 
Chairman Beggs believes it comes closer to meeting the parameter of the 

Planning Board. 
This will be placed on the Planning Board Agenda for next month. 



September 12, 2002 – Zoning Board of Appeal Minutes 11

 
Case # 546 – Stephen Spring – Use Variance Application to operate a sawmill 

on his property located on the northeast corner of the Route 20 and Tully Farms 
Road intersection in an Agricultural/Residential District. 

Mr. Spring was not present. 
Chairman Beggs requested counsel to send Mr. Spring a letter stating that he 

hasn’t shown up at the last 2 meetings and either he shows up with the sketch plan of 
what he plans to do at the next meeting or this Board will deny the application. 

Ralph said he is going to trial at the end of the month. 
 
Case # 545 – Paul and Cheryl Carter – Appeal for a rear and side yard 

variance for their property located at 3159 Route 11 North in an 
Agricultural/Residential District to erect a barn. 

  
Paul advised there is a septic system in the backyard. 
Member Butkus said you have to show difficulty. 
Paul showed them how the septic system and leach field are laid out in the 

backyard. 
Chairman Beggs asked if the existing garage attached to the house will become a 

screened patio. 
Paul said it will be still used as a garage in the winter. 
Chairman Beggs said he is looking to be 10’ off the side and 10’ off the back 

property lines. 
Paul said he can go 15’ off the back if he has to. 
Member Miller asked what borders his back property line. 
Paul said vacant land and then Route 81. 
Chairman Beggs said the barn will be used to store things he isn’t using at the 

time. 
John asked how tall the barn will be. 
Paul said he has  plans for the barn. 
Chairman Beggs said the Board needs to see the plans for the building.  Paul will 

need to explain why he can’t put the building within the parameter of the zoning.  He has 
to show difficulty and explain why he can’t comply with the zoning requirements.  It 
would help if Paul would draw the leach fields in and explain why the building needs to 
be in the location he has sketched it. 

Member Butkus said it would help if he would note the neighboring property 
owners and any show any trees, etc. 

Chairman Beggs said if Paul can have the documentation ready, they can schedule 
this for as public hearing for the next meeting.  If he doesn’t have the information ready 
by that time, they would have table the public hearing another month. 

Paul said he can have all the information ready so this will be schedule as a public 
hearing for the next meeting.   

 
Chairman Beggs said he had a gentleman stop at his house last Saturday morning 

and he lives on Jamesville Pompey Road  (Route 91).  He lives on the west side of the 
road and he wanted to make 3 lots from the parcel which is only large enough for 2 lots.   



September 12, 2002 – Zoning Board of Appeal Minutes 12

Ralph said the same gentleman spoke to him and he said he didn’t think it would 
be approved but told him to call Chairman Beggs. 

Chairman Beggs told him he can’t have 3 lots with a shared driveway.  He needs 
60’ of road frontage. 

 
Members’ Miller moved and Drumm seconded the motion to adjourn.  Motion 

passed unanimously. 
 

The Zoning Board of Appeals Meeting adjourned at 9:42 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Mary Jo Kelly 
Secretary 

 



September 12, 2002 – Zoning Board of Appeal Minutes 13

SEPTEMBER 12, 2002 
ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

ATTENDANCE SHEET 
 
John Langey, Town Attorney 
Sandra Smith, Councilor 
Gregory Scammell, Supervisor 
Robert DeOrdio, 2981 Sentinel Hgts. Rd. 
Rita DeOrdio, 2918 Sentinel Hgts. Rd. 
Dorothy McConnell, 5822 Winacre Dr. 
Diane DeBottis, Camillus 
Paula Michelson, Tully 
Richard Arin, Tully 
J.E. Harper, Jr., Sturgen Dr. 
Dorothy Tennant, Sentinel Hgts. Rd. 
Bob Tennant, Sentinel Hgts. Rd. 
Kathleen M. Burnett, Syracuse 
Ann Doyle, LaFayette 
Amy Doyle, LaFayette 
Carol Oot, Applicant 
Claire Watson, Applicant 
Mary Warner, 3233 Webb Rd. 
Frank Warner, 3233 Webb Rd. 
Jane Warner, 3059 Webb Rd. 
Bettye Knapp, Rte. 20 
Greg Watson, Applicant 
Janice Watson, Route 11 
Abbey Oot, Route 11 
Dennis Smith, LaFayette 
Paul Carter, LaFayette 
Andra Leimanis, 2831 LaFayette Rd. 
Dan Galvin, Applicant 
Ruth Pierce, 2340 Rte. 11 
Jeff Murray, 118 Pembrook Dr., Syracuse 
Jason Timian, 5771 Norman Dr. 
Helen Shute, 2814 LaFayette Rd. 
Robert Hickes, 4169 Garrett Rd., Ithaca 
Kathy Bennett, Watson’s attorney from Bond, Schoeneck & King 
 


